
STATE OF WISCONSIN Mail to: 
Department of Safety and Professional Services PO Box 8935 
1400 E Washington Ave. Madison WI 53708-8935 
Madison WI  53703 

 Email: dsps@wisconsin.gov 
  Web: http://dsps.wi.gov 

Governor Scott Walker       Secretary Dave Ross                                                Phone: 608-266-2112 
 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS SECTION 
EXAMINING BOARD OF ARCHITECTS, LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS, 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, DESIGNERS, AND LAND SURVEYORS 

Room 121A, 1400 E. Washington Avenue, Madison 
Contact: Angela Hellenbrand (608) 261-5406 

August 29, 2013 

The following agenda describes the issues that the Board plans to consider at the meeting. At the 
time of the meeting, items may be removed from the agenda. Please consult the meeting minutes 

for a description of the actions of the Board. 

AGENDA 

8:30 a.m. 

OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER – ROLL CALL 

A. Adoption of Agenda (1-4) 

B. Approval of Minutes – April 25, 2013 (5-10) 

C. Administrative Matters – Discussion and Consideration 
1) Staff Updates 

D. Education and Exam Matters 
1) NCEES Exam Irregularities, Update 
2) Registered Continuing Education Program (RCEP), Discussion and Action 

E. Class 1 Hearings 
1) 9:30 A.M. APPEARANCE:  Alexander J. Rexrode – Denial of Eligibility 

Application for the Principles and Practice of Engineering Examination (11-18) 
2) 10:00 A.M. APPEARANCE:  Adam G. Roder – Denial of Eligibility Application 

for the Principles and Practice of Engineering Examination (19-28) 

F. Legislative/Administrative Rule Matters – Discussion and Consideration 
1) 10:30 A.M.: Public Hearing for A-E 13 Comity (29-34) 
2) Clearinghouse Report Review for A-E 13 Comity (35-36) 
3) Legislative Approval of A-E 4, Update 

1



G. Informational Items – Discussion and Consideration 
1) Legal Research Results on Requirements for Registration of Firms Providing 

Professional Engineering Services in Wisconsin (37-38) 
2) Report on Presentation at the WSPE Discovery Conference on Continuing Education 

Requirements 
3) Report on NCEES Annual Meeting by Joe Eberle 
4) Use of NCEES Enforcement Exchange 

H. Items Added After Preparation of Agenda 
1) Introductions, Announcements and Recognition 
2) Presentations of Petition(s) for Summary Suspension 
3) Presentation of Proposed Stipulation(s), Final Decision(s) and Order(s) 
4) Presentation of Final Decisions 
5) Disciplinary Matters 
6) Executive Director Matters 
7) Education and Examination Matters 
8) Credentialing Matters 
9) Class 1 Hearing(s) 
10) Practice Matters 
11) Legislation/Administrative Rule Matters 
12) Liaison Report(s) 
13) Informational Item(s) 
14) Speaking Engagement(s), Travel or Public Relation Request(s) 

I. Public Comments 

CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION to deliberate on cases following hearing (s. 19.85(1) 
(a), Stats.; consider closing disciplinary investigation with administrative warning (s. 
19.85(1)(b), Stats. and 440.205, Stats., to consider individual histories or disciplinary data 
(s. 19.85 (1)(f), Stats.; and, to confer with legal counsel (s. 19.85(1)(g), Stats.) 

J. Deliberation on Issuance of Administrative Warnings – Discussion and Consideration 
1) 12 ENG 003 (S.H.) (39-40) 

K. DLSC Matters – Discussion and Consideration 
1) Case Status Report (111-112) 
2) Case Closings 

a. 12 ENG 007 (T.J.S.) (41-46) 

L. Deliberation of Class 1 Hearings 
1) Alexander J. Rexrode (47-70) 
2) Adam G. Roder (71-96) 

M. Application Matters – Discussion and Consideration 
1) Reinstatement – Thomas D. Mitchell (97-110) 

2



N. Deliberation of Items Received After Preparation of Agenda 
1) Disciplinary Matters 
2) Education and Examination Matters 
3) Credentialing Matters 
4) Class 1 Hearings 
5) Monitoring Matters 
6) Professional Assistance Procedure (PAP) Matters 
7) Petition(s) for Summary Suspension 
8) Petition(s) for Extension of Time 
9) Proposed Stipulations, Final Decisions and Orders 
10) Administrative Warnings 
11) Proposed Decisions 
12) Matters Relating to Costs 
13) Petitions for Rehearing 
14) Formal Complaints 
15) Case Closings 
16) Appearances from Requests Received or Renewed 

O. Consulting with Legal Counsel 

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING CLOSED SESSION 

P. Vote on Items Considered or Deliberated Upon in Closed Session, if Voting is Appropriate 

ADJOURNMENT 

3



 

 

 

44



 
 
 

ENGINEERS SECTION 
EXAMINING BOARD OF ARCHITECTS, LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS,  
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, DESIGNERS AND LAND SURVEYORS 

MEETING MINUTES 
APRIL 25, 2013 

 
PRESENT: Steven Hook, Joseph Eberle, Mark Mayer and Charles Kopplin 
 
STAFF: Tom Wightman, Executive Director; Angela Hellenbrand, Executive Director; David 

Carlson, Communications Specialist  
 
 
Charles Kopplin, Section Chair, called the meeting to order at 8:38 a.m.  A quorum of 4 members was 
confirmed. 
 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION: Steven Hook moved, seconded by Joseph Eberle, to adopt the agenda as 
amended.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
MOTION: Steven Hook moved, seconded by Joseph Eberle, to approve the minutes of 

January 31, 2013 as published.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ENG AE-2.02 
 

MOTION:  Joseph Eberle moved, seconded by Steven Hook, to request the Executive 
Director send copies of the written submittals provided at today’s hearing, to all 
the members of the other A-E Joint Board Sections.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
MOTION:  Joseph Eberle moved, seconded by Steven Hook, that the matter relating to 

electronic signatures in A-E 2.02 be sent to the A-E Rules Committee for 
consideration and that a meeting be called to address this matter prior to the next 
regular meeting of the A-E Rules Committee. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
DELEGATION FOR MONITORING 

 
MOTION: Mark Mayer moved, seconded by Steven Hook, to delegate authority to the 

Monitoring Liaison to address all issues relating to monitoring orders.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 

LEGISLATION/ADMINISTRATIVE RULE MATTERS 
 
MOTION:  Mark Mayer moved, seconded by Steven Hook, to approve the revisions to A-E 

13.08 (4) as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
MOTION:  Mark Mayer moved, seconded by Joseph Eberle, to add the following sentence at 

the end of A-E 13.09 as it currently exists: “However, an applicant by COMITY 
 

Engineer Section 
Meeting Minutes 

April 25, 2013 
Page 1 of 5 

 

55



 
 
 

who has received their first license as a professional engineer within the last two 
years shall be exempt from meeting the 30 PDHs required for continuing 
education requirements and shall not be required to comply with the continuing 
education requirements for their first renewal of registration.” Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
MOTION:  Joseph Eberle moved, seconded by Mark Mayer, to forward the revisions to A-E 

13, as amended, to the Clearinghouse for review. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
MOTION:  Joseph Eberle moved, seconded by Mark Mayer, to have the Office of Education 

and Exams alter the CE tracking form such that additional rows may be added or 
the row heights may be revised at the user’s discretion.  If this can’t be done, 
unlock the entire spreadsheet. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
MOTION:  Joseph Eberle moved, seconded by Steven Hook, to authorize Charles Kopplin to 

speak to WSPE, on behalf of the Engineer Section, regarding continuing 
education requirements. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
MOTION: Joseph Eberle moved, seconded by Mark Mayer, to convene to closed session to 

deliberate on cases following hearing (s. 19.85(1)(a), Stats.; consider closing 
disciplinary investigation with administrative warning (s. 19.85(1)(b), Stats. and 
440.205, Stats., to consider individual histories or disciplinary data (s. 19.85 
(1)(f), Stats.; and, to confer with legal counsel (s. 19.85(1)(g), Stats.).  Roll Call 
Vote:  Joseph Eberle - yes; Steven Hook - yes; Charles Kopplin - yes; and Mark 
Mayer – yes.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Open session recessed at 1:48 p.m. 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

 
MOTION: Joseph Eberle moved, seconded by Steven Hook, to reconvene in open session at 

3:37 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

VOTING ON ITEMS CONSIDERED/DELIBERATED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
MOTION: Mark Mayer moved, seconded by Joseph Eberle, to reaffirm the following 

actions taken by the Section in closed session. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE WARNING 
 

MOTION:  Joseph Eberle moved, seconded by Steven Hook, to issue an Administrative 
Warning in Case 12 ENG 004.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
CASE CLOSINGS 

MOTION:  Steven Hook moved, seconded by Mark Mayer, to close case 12 ENG 001 for no 
violation. Motion carried. Charles Kopplin recused himself from discussion and 
voting. 

 
Engineer Section 
Meeting Minutes 

April 25, 2013 
Page 2 of 5 

 

66



 
 
 

 
CERTIFICATES OF AUTHORIZATION 

 
MOTION: Joseph Eberle moved, seconded by Steven Hook, to grant a certificate of 

authorization to the following firms: 
• Soil and Materials Engineering, Inc. 
• Endeco Engineers, Inc. 
• Buro Happold Consulting Engineers PC 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

MOTION: Joseph Eberle moved, seconded by Steven Hook, to have Legal Counsel, as time 
permits, review Section 443.08 and provide the Section with a summary of the 
requirements for firm registration. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

DELIBERATION ON CLASS 1 HEARINGS 
 

Application of Donald Yi as an Engineer-in-Training 
 
MOTION:  Joseph Eberle moved seconded by Steven Hook, to issue an order approving the 

application of Donald Yi for a credential as an Engineer-in-Training.   Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
Application of Caleb Brauneller as an Engineer-in-Training 
 
MOTION:  Steven Hook moved seconded by Joseph Eberle, to issue an order approving the 

application of Caleb Brauneller for a credential as an Engineer-in-Training.   
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Application of Daniel Posthuma as an Engineer-in-Training 
 
MOTION:  Joseph Eberle moved seconded by Steven Hook, to issue an order affirming the 

denial of the application of Daniel Posthuma for a credential as an Engineer-in-
Training.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Eligibilty of Rathin Shah to take the Principles and Practice Exam 
 
MOTION:  Mark Mayer moved seconded by Steven Hook, to issue an order approving 

Rathin Shah to take the Principles and Practice examination.   Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
Eligibilty of Becky Reese to take the Principles and Practice Exam 
 
MOTION:  Joseph Eberle moved seconded by Steven Hook, to issue an order approving 

Becky Reese to take the Principles and Practice examination.   Motion carried.  
  

 
Engineer Section 
Meeting Minutes 

April 25, 2013 
Page 3 of 5 

 

77



 
 
 

 
Eligibilty of Alper Kolcu to take the Principles and Practice Exam 
 
MOTION:  Joseph Eberle moved seconded by Mark Mayer, to issue an order affirming the 

denial of Alper Kolcu’s application to take the Principles and Practice 
examination.   Motion carried unanimously. 

 
REINSTATEMENTS 

 
MOTION:  Joseph Eberle moved seconded by Steven Hook to approve the reinstatement 

requests of: 
• Jeremy Craven 
• Sanjeev Dabade 
• Efren Esperanza 
• Dennis Garven 

   Motion carried unanimously. 
 

APPLICATION MATTERS 
 
MOTION: Steven Hook moved, seconded by Mark Mayer, to approve the applications of 

the following.   
 
FOR REGISTRATION AS A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER 

1. Nowack, Scott 
2. St-Onge, Philippe 
3. Terada, Seiji 

 

FOR ENGINEER – IN – TRAINING CERTIFICATION 

1. Joachim, Douglas 
2. Vijayakumar, Gowrishankar 

 
TO TAKE THE PRINCIPLES AND PRACTICE OF ENGINEERING EXAMINATION 

1. Border, Christopher  
2. Engels, Mark 
3. Fehling, Anna 
4. Galarowicz, David  
5. Schraufnagle, Daniel 
6. Terzic, Velemir   
7. Vijayakumar, Gowrishankar 
8. Weiker, Jason  
9. Ahmed Issahak  

 Motion carried unanimously. 
  

 
Engineer Section 
Meeting Minutes 

April 25, 2013 
Page 4 of 5 

 

88



 
 
 

MOTION: Joseph Eberle moved, seconded by Steven Hook, to issue an intent to deny the 
request of Robert Smetters for eligibility to take the Principles and Practice Exam 
unless, within 45 days, applicant submits verification by the relevant engineer of 
record, acceptable to the Engineers Section, that work on the projects’ plan sheets 
submitted by the applicant were performed by the applicant, pursuant to A-E 
4.03.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
RECONGITION OF CHUCK KOPPLIN 

 
MOTION: Steven Hook moved, seconded by Joseph Eberle, to thank Charles Kopplin for 

his years of dedicated service to the Engineers Section. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION: Joseph Eberle moved, seconded by Steven Hook, to adjourn the meeting at 3:42 

p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Engineer Section 
Meeting Minutes 

April 25, 2013 
Page 5 of 5 

 

99



 

 

 

1010



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



 

 

 

34



State of Wisconsin 
Department of Safety & Professional Services 

 

 

AGENDA REQUEST FORM 
1) Name and Title of Person Submitting the Request: 
 
Shawn Leatherwood  
 

2) Date When Request Submitted:  
August 2, 2013 
Items will be considered late if submitted after 4:30 p.m. and  less than:  

 10 work days before the meeting for Medical Board 

 14 work days before the meeting for all others 

3) Name of Board, Committee, Council, Sections: 
Engineering Section of the Examining Board of Architects, Landscape Architects, Professional Engineers,  Designers, 

and Land Surveyors 

4) Meeting Date: 
August 29, 2013 

5) Attachments: 

 Yes 

 No 

 

6) How should the item be titled on the agenda page? 
Clearinghouse Report review for for A-E 13 Comity 

7) Place Item in: 

 Open Session 

 Closed Session 

 Both 

 

8) Is an appearance before the Board being 
scheduled?  If yes, who is appearing? 

  Yes by       
                                             (name)                               

 No   

9) Name of Case Advisor(s), if required: 
N/A 

10) Describe the issue and action that should be addressed:  
 

 

The Board will review the Clearinghouse report and accept or reject the Clearinghouse’s recommendations. 

 

The Board will approve the proposed rule draft as amended for filing with the governor’s office and the legislature 

through a designated member of the Board. 
 
 
  
 

11)                                                                                  Authorization 

 
Shawn Leatherwood                                                                                                        August 2, 2013 

Signature of person making this request                                                                                          Date 
 

 

Supervisor (if required)                                                                                                                       Date 
 

 

Bureau Director signature (indicates approval to add post agenda deadline item to agenda)    Date  

Directions for including supporting documents:  
1.  This form should be attached to any documents submitted to the agenda. 
2.  Post Agenda Deadline items must be authorized by a Supervisor and the Board Services Bureau Director. 
3.  If necessary, Provide original documents needing Board Chairperson signature to the Bureau Assistant prior to the start of a 
meeting.  

 

 

35



 

 

 

36



37



 

 

 

38


	A. Adoption of Agenda
	B. Approval of Minutes
	C. Administrative Updates
	D. Education and Exam Matters
	E. Class 1 Hearings
	E.1 AlexanderJ. Rexrode
	E.2 Adam G. Roder

	F. Legislative/ Administrative Rule Matters
	F.1 Public Hearing for A-E Comity
	F.2 Clearinghouse Report Review for A-E 13 Comity
	F.3 Legislative Approval of A-E 4, Update

	G. Informational Items
	G.1 Legal Research Results on Requirements for Registration of Firms Providing Professional Engineering Services in Wisconsin

	Closed
	J. Deliberation of Issuance of Administrative Warnings
	J.1 12 ENG 003 (S.H.)

	K. DLSC Matters
	K.1 Case Status Report
	K.2. Case Closings
	K.2.a 12 ENG 007 (T.J.S.)


	L. Deliberation of Class 1 Hearings
	L.1 Alexander J. Rexrode
	L.2 Adam G. Roder

	M. Application Matters
	M.1 Reinstatement - Thomas D. Mitchell





